
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Historic Preservation Commission and Staff Seating

The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Historic Preservation Commission. 
For information call (760) 839-4671. 

CAROL REA 
Chair 

CAROL BREITENFELD 
Commissioner 

ERROL COWAN 
Commissioner 

JAMES SPANN 
Vice-Chair 

MARC CORRELL 
Commissioner 

MARION HANLON 
Commissioner 

KIRSTEN PERAINO 
      Minutes Clerk 

NICOLE PURVIS 
Commissioner 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. FLAG SALUTE

C. ROLL CALL

D. REVIEW OF MINUTES: May 16, 2019

_____________________________________________________________________________

The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Commission on any item of interest to the 
public, before or during the Commission's consideration of the item. If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, please fill out a 
speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the Chairman. 

Electronic Media: Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at which it is to be shown. 

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system. The media must be labeled 
with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact information for the person 
presenting the media. 

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. City staff will 
queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak. Materials shown to the Commission during the 
meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the City. 

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under "Oral Communications" which is listed at the 
beginning and end of the agenda. All persons addressing the Historic Preservation Commission are asked to state their names for 
the public record. 

Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting: Any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Historic 
Preservation Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division 
located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services to individuals with disabilities. Please contact 
the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643, with any requests for reasonable accommodation, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
201 N. Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 

3:00 p.m. 

September 19, 2019 



Historic Preservation Commission 
                                                                                                                            September 19, 2019 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

E. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 

"Under State law, all items under Written Communications can have no action and will be referred 
to the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 

F. ORAL COMMUNICATION: 
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business within the jurisdiction 
of the Commission. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 

 

H. CURRENT BUSINESS: 

 

1. MILLS ACT - Case No. HP 19-0002: 

REQUEST:  Mills Act request for 1915 California Craftsman 
ZONING/LOCATION: R-1-6 / 153 East 6th Avenue 
APPLICANT: Lori Hatley 
STAFF: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 

2. MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 19-0003: 

REQUEST:  Mills Act request for 1915 California Bungalow 
ZONING/LOCATION: R-1-6 / 134 West 6th Avenue 

APPLICANT: Dorothy Marron     

STAFF: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

3. DISCUSSION ITEM – Proposed Downtown Project: Aspire - Case No. PHG 19-0014: 

REQUEST:  Master and Precise Development Plan for new mixed-use project 
ZONING/LOCATION: SP (Downtown Specific Plan, Historic Downtown District / 137 W. Valley 

Parkway 

APPLICANT: Touchstone Communities, LLC     

STAFF: Adam Finestone, Principal Planner 

 

4. DEMONSTRATION – Property Records on City GIS Software 

STAFF: Adam Finestone, Principal Planner 

 

Note: Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require 
either public notice or public hearings. Public comments may be limited to a maximum time of three 
minutes per person. 
 

I. ORAL COMMUNICATION:  
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communication can have no action, and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda."  This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the commission on any item of business within the 
jurisdiction of the Commission. 

 

J. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED HPC MEETING ON THURSDAY, 
NOVEMBER 21, 2019  



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 

ACTION MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ESCONDIDO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

 
MAY 16, 2019 

 
The regular meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission was called to order at 
3:00 p.m. by Chair Rea in Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, California. 
 

Commissioners present: Carol Rea, Chair; James Spann, Vice-Chair; Carol Breitenfeld, 
Commissioner; Marc Correll, Commissioner; Errol Cowan, Commissioner; Nicole Purvis, 
Commissioner, and Marion Hanlon, Commissioner. 
 

Commissioners absent: None. 
 

Staff present:  Adam Finestone, Principal Planner; Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II; 
and Kirsten Peraino, Minutes Clerk. 
 
MINUTES: 
 

Moved by Vice-Chair Spann, seconded by Commissioner Hanlon, to approve the minutes 
of the March 21, 2019 meeting.  Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: None. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATION:  None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None. 
 
CURRENT BUSINESS: 
 

1. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM 18-0189  
 

REQUEST:  Review revised design for unpermitted rear addition 
 

ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-6 in OEN/ 1055 S. Juniper St. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 
 

COMMISSION ACTION:  Moved by Vice-Chair Spann, seconded by Commissioner 
Correll to approve staff’s recommendation. Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 

2. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM 19-0001 – Residential Addition 
 

REQUEST:  Review unpermitted work done to Local Register property 
 
ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-8 / 1048 Metcalf Street 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional approval 
 
COMMISSION ACTION: Moved by Commissioner Spann, seconded by Commissioner 
Hanlon to Conditionally Approve staff’s recommendation. Motion carried 4-2-1 
(Commissioners Cowan, Hanlon, Rea and Spann voted yes; Commissioners Breitenfeld 
and Purvis voted no; Commissioner Correll recused self. 

 

3. DISCUSSION – Historic Preservation Awards (May 22, 2019, City Council meeting) 
 

REPORT BY:  Paul K. Bingham, Assistant Planner II 
 

COMMISSION ACTION:  The Commission withdrew nomination for the Adobe Society. 

 

4. DISCUSSION – Presentation/Summary of California Preservation Foundation’s May 

8, 2019 Workshop 

 

STAFF SUMMARY BY:  Paul K. Bingham, Assistant Planner II 

  
ORAL COMMUNICATION:  None. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 4:26 p.m. until the next regularly 
scheduled HPC Meeting on July 18, 2019. 
 

 
 
 
_________________________                         ___________________________ 
Kirsten Peraino, Administrative            Adam Finestone, Principal Planner  
Coordinator Minutes Clerk                                 Witness 
 



     

 Agenda Item No.: H.1 
Date: September 19, 2019 

 
 

 
TO:   Historic Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II 
 

REQUEST: REQUESTS:  Residence addressed as 153 East 6th Avenue (case number HP19-0002) 
 

1. Mills Act contract request and 
2. Consideration of the proposed CEQA exemption  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Forward recommendation of approval to the City Council 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

City of Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey 
 

A City of Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey was completed in 1990 (Agis, May 1990). Close to 
1,000 resources were inventoried in the survey for their significance. The Survey of 1990 was conducted in 
compliance with procedures established by the U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service and 
the State Office of Historic Preservation. A Historical/Cultural Resources Survey is a collection of 
information that identifies documents and describes the historical resources in the community. The survey 
also associates the resources with historical events and/or people. Among other preservation programs, the 
survey serves as the basis for historic preservation plans. The survey also fulfills a higher level of historic 
nomination requirements (Local, State and National), it allows for the applicability of Historic Building Code 
in regard to rehabilitation/renovation of structures, and justifies local, state and federal funding assistance. 
 
Local Register of Historic Places Listing  

 

The subject property was approved for listing on the City’s Local Register on May 5, 1992.  
 
Mills Act Contract and Property Applying 

 

The Mills Act is a state law that enables 
owners of designated historic properties to 
enter into a preservation contract with their 
local legislative body and receive a 
substantial reduction in the property taxes. 
One of the incentives for the preservation of 
historic and/or cultural resources, approved 
in 1989, allows property owners of 
designated historic resources to enter into a 
Mills Act contract with the City. Article 40 of 
the Escondido Zoning Code authorizes the 
property owner to apply for a Mills Act 
contract if the resource has been listed as a 
Local Register property. The current owner 
is requesting to enter into a Mills Act 
contract. 

 
The subject property is located within the City’s Old Escondido Neighborhood historic district, addressed as 
153 East 6th Avenue (APN 233-262-06-00). It consists of .15 acre with a one-story Craftsman residence 



built circa 1915. The structure’s exterior is clad in a unique pattern of alternating thin and wide rows of 
wooden shingles, pairs of beams project from double porch columns and a low, flat gable facing the street 
all give the structure a decidedly Oriental look. At the time the property was evaluated in the City’s 1990 
historic survey, the historian considered the house significant. A double garage covered in Board and 
Batten siding is located at the rear of the property and its pair of single bay doors face the alley. While old, 
the garage was likely built or moved onto the site sometime after the main house. No permit record was 
found to establish its exact age. The current owner desires to enter into a Mills Act contract for this 
property’s continued preservation. The owner is proposing as part of the contract to do important repairs. 
(See attached list of improvements.) 
 
 
ANALYSIS 

 

Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey 
 

The applicant has conducted the required historic research and data collection, including providing the 
requested chain of title, and has submitted the information on the required format, State Department of 
Parks and Recreation forms (see attached). The information provided by the applicant, including historical 
background and descriptive analysis of the architectural style, is adequate for the purpose of determining 
the appropriateness of adding the structures to the survey. 
 
Requirement for Listing on a Register of Historic Places 

 

Because this resource was previously placed on the City’s Local Register, this requirement has been 
satisfied. 
 
Mills Act Contract 

 

The Mills Act contract is for a minimum of ten years, automatically renewed each year unless a notice of non-
renewal is filed. The terms of the contract require that the property owner make a commitment to maintain the 
structure and surrounding property, per a maintenance schedule that has been included with this report (see 
attached). All improvements must be performed to the Secretary of the Interior Standards. In addition, the 
applicant has been informed that all exterior modifications require staff review. Staff feels that the proposed Mills 
Act Contract is appropriate since the property meets the established criteria for a historic resource, and adequate 
improvements have been listed. 
 



Mills Act Application 
List of Improvements 

 
Property Address: 153 East 6th Avenue 

Property Owner: Lori Hatley 
 
 

1. Installation of new house wiring and electric panel (completed) 
2. Replacement of residence’s plumbing system (in progress) 
3. Repair/restore rear garage including replacement of dry rotted wood (planned) 
4. Restore original barn door style garage doors and original rolling hardware (planned) 
5. Repainting of both structures with colors from a period appropriate palette (planned)  
6. Replacement of rolled roofing over front porch of the main house (planned) 
7. Replacement of rolled roofing over rear portion of the main house (planned) 
8. Installation of period appropriate front door screen belonging to residence (planned) 

















































 

 

  

Agenda Item No.: H.2 
Date: September 19, 2019 

 

 
TO:   Historic Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II 
 

REQUEST: REQUESTS:  Residence addressed as 134 West 6th Avenue (case number HP 19-0003) 
 

1. Mills Act contract request and 
2. Consideration of the proposed CEQA exemption  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Forward recommendation of approval to the City Council 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

City of Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey 
 

A City of Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey was completed in 1990 (Agis, May 1990). Close to 
1,000 resources were inventoried in the survey for their significance. The Survey of 1990 was conducted in 
compliance with procedures established by the U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service and 
the State Office of Historic Preservation. A Historical/Cultural Resources Survey is a collection of information 
that identifies documents and describes the historical resources in the community. The survey also associates 
the resources with historical events and/or people. Among other preservation programs, the survey serves 
as the basis for historic preservation plans. The survey also fulfills a higher level of historic nomination 
requirements (Local, State and National), it allows for the applicability of Historic Building Code in regard to 
rehabilitation/renovation of structures, and justifies local, state and federal funding assistance. 
 
Local Register of Historic Places Listing  

 

The subject property was approved for listing on the City’s Local Register on June 2, 1992.  
 
Mills Act Contract and Property Applying 

 

The Mills Act is a state law that enables owners of designated historic properties to enter into a preservation 
contract with their local legislative body and receive a substantial reduction in the property taxes. One of the 
incentives for the preservation of historic and/or cultural resources, approved in 1989, allows property owners 
of designated historic resources to enter into a Mills Act contract with the City. Article 40 of the Escondido 
Zoning Code authorizes the property owner to apply for a Mills Act contract if the resource has been listed as 
a Local Register property. The current owner is requesting to enter into a Mills Act contract. 

 
The subject property is located within the City’s Old 
Escondido Neighborhood historic district, addressed as 134 
West 6th Avenue (APN 233-251-14-00). It consists of .09 
acre with a 792 SF one story Craftsman bungalow which 
started construction in 1915, but was not completed until 
1936. It is a twin to the house next door at 136 West 6th 
Avenue and both sit on nonconforming narrow lots. The 
structure’s symmetrical porch with elephantine posts and 
vertical gable vent faces the street. The exterior is clad in 
horizontal wood siding. A matching garage with a pair of 
single bay doors faces the alley. The current owner desires 
to enter into a Mills Act contract for this property’s continued 
preservation. The owner is proposing as part of the contract 
to do important repairs. (See attached list of improvements.) 



 
 

 

ANALYSIS 
 

Escondido Historical/Cultural Resources Survey 
 

The applicant has conducted extensive historic research and data collection, including providing the 
requested chain of title, and has submitted the information on the required format, State Department of Parks 
and Recreation forms (see attached). The information provided by the applicant, including historical 
background and descriptive analysis of the architectural style, is adequate for the purpose of determining the 
appropriateness of adding the structures to the survey. 
 
Requirement for Listing on a Register of Historic Places 
 
Because this resource was previously placed on the City’s Local Register, this requirement has been 
satisfied. 
 
Mills Act Contract 
 
The Mills Act contract is for a minimum of ten years, automatically renewed each year unless a notice of non-
renewal is filed. The terms of the contract require that the property owner make a commitment to maintain the 
structure and surrounding property, per a maintenance schedule that has been included with this report (see 
attached). All improvements must be performed to the Secretary of the Interior Standards. In addition, the applicant 
has been informed that all exterior modifications require staff review. Staff feels that the proposed Mills Act Contract 
is appropriate since the property meets the established criteria for a historic resource, and adequate improvements 
have been listed. 
 

  



 
 
 

Mills Act Application 
List of Improvements 

 
Property Address: 134 West 6th Avenue 

Property Owner: Dorothy Marron 
 
 

1. Replace property fencing (completed) 
2. Replace front door with period appropriate door (planned) 
3. Repair existing wood-framed windows (planned) 
4. Add period appropriate screens to existing windows (planned)  
5. Reroof the main house (planned) 
6. Remove satellite dish from roof and repair as needed (planned) 
7. Repaint main house with period appropriate colors (planned) 
8. Replace turf with drought tolerant landscaping (planned) 
9. Upgrade electrical system in main house (planned) 
10. Repair mortar on fireplace and install fireplace liner (planned) 
11. Repair house foundation (planned) 



















































 

 

  

 Agenda Item No.: H.3 

Date: September 19, 2019 
 
 

 
 
 
TO:  Historic Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:  Adam Finestone, Principal Planner 
    
PROJECT: Proposed Downtown Project: Aspire (Case No. PHG 19-0014) 
 
LOCATION: 137 W. Valley Parkway  
 
APPLICANT: Touchstone Communities, LLC 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
 
A Master and Precise Development Plan to construct a six-story, mixed-use structure in the Historic District of the 
Downtown Specific Plan containing 131 apartment units, 4,289 square feet of commercial space, underground 
parking, and an outdoor common area with a pool for residents.  The site currently is a municipal parking lot 
containing 118 public parking spaces.  The proposed structure would be 67 feet in height with parapet walls and 
a tower element that extends up to 75 feet in height.  The project would provide 30-studios, 46 1-bedroom and 55 
2-bedroom units ranging in size from 370 square feet to 1,293 square feet.  A two-story garage would contain 212 
parking spaces with 153 spaces for residents (including 19 tandem spaces) primarily in the basement and 59 
spaces for public parking on the ground level.  An additional 17 public parking spaces would be provided along 
the alley.  Zoning provisions allow a density of 75 units per acre for a maximum of 79 units at the site.  The request 
includes a density bonus of 35% or 28-units (including 9 units for Very Low Income households) and incentives to 
provide affordable housing, and an allocation of 24 units from the Density Transfer Program for the Downtown 
Specific Plan area through a Development Agreement.   
 
Additional information and exhibits can be found in the August 27, 2019, Planning Commission staff report at the 
following link: https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/agendas/PC/2019/08.27.19PCAgendaPacket.pdf.  
 
STAFF REQUEST: 
 
Staff is requesting input from the HPC on the proposed project. A summary of the discussion will be included with 
the City Council staff report for this item.  

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/agendas/PC/2019/08.27.19PCAgendaPacket.pdf

	HPC Agenda Packet 09.19.19.pdf
	HPC 09-19-19 Final Agenda.pdf

	9.19.19 Item H.3 Memo.pdf



